

2011



Membership Directory

Member Information

By-laws

Exhibit Standards

<http://southhillsartleague.org>

South Hills Art League Member Information

Anita Alano

31 W Bruceton Road
Pittsburgh, PA 15236
Phone Number: 412 653 2171
Email Address: a.alano@yahoo.com
Medium: Watercolor, Oil, Acrylic

Barbara G Anderson

602 Norwood Road
Mt. Laurel, NJ 08054
Phone Number: 856 914 1103
Email Address: bgaleanderson@aol.com
Medium: Watercolor

Lynn Angelelli

341 Carlton Road
Bethel Park, PA 15102
Phone Number: 412 833 5919
Email Address: ang0530@verizon.net
Medium: Watercolor

Pat Babcock

3410 Brookdale Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15241
Phone Number: 412 831 0704
Email Address: pk.babcock@verizon.net
Medium: Chinese Watercolor, Acrylic

Margo Barraclough

2615 Wyncote Road
Bethel Park, PA 15102
Phone Number: 412 835 9010
Email Address: margo.barraclough@gmail.com
Medium: Pastel

Ms Bettye Barrow

1290 Boyce Road Apt C-329
Pittsburgh, PA 15241
Phone Number: 724 949 1326
Medium: Pastel

Richard Bartlett

1926 Pauline Avenue Apt 610
Pittsburgh, PA 15216
Phone Number: 412 344 1770
Medium: Photography

Linda J Baxendell

5880 Dublin Road
Bethel Park, PA 15102
Phone Number: 412 833 0862
Email Address: ljBax99@verizon.net
Medium: Glass, Acrylic, Pastel

Donna Bogosto Kearns

1214 Grouse Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15243
Phone Number: 412 279 1917
Email Address: dbkstudio@comcast.net
Medium: Mixed Media
Website: <http://dbkcolorstudios.com>

Jo Brown

9104 Sundance Drive
Bridgeville, PA 15017
Phone Number: 412 319 7549
Email Address: jobrownart@comcast.net
Medium: Watercolor, Acrylic, Collage

Judith Browne

1440 Candlewood Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15241
Phone Number: 412 835 4729
Email Address: jbcalligraphy@live.com
Medium: Calligraphy, bookmaking

Jean Buckley

3720 Rebecca Street
Pittsburgh, PA 15234
Phone Number: 412 668-0573
Medium: Watercolor

William Ceriani

428 Duquesne Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15243
Phone Number: 412 343 7576
Email Address: williamjceriani@msn.com
Medium: Oil, Pastel, Acrylic

Joanne Chamberlin

43 Dutch Lane
Pittsburgh, PA 15236
Phone Number: 412 653 1587
Email Address: j_chamberlin@verizon.net
Medium: Acrylic, Collage, Stained Glass

Alice Clary

835 Lindsay Road
Carnegie, PA 15106

Phone Number: 412 276 7948

Medium: Watercolor, Pastel, Oil Pastel, Collage

Connie Clutter

301 Sunset Blvd
Washington, PA 15301

Phone Number: 724 413 2802

Email Address: pastelcon@msn.com

Medium: Pastel, Watercolor

Jackie Cornell

216 Allenberry Circle
Pittsburgh, PA 15234

Phone Number: 412 854 2331

Email Address: jackie15234@aol.com

Medium: Watercolor

Jim Curry

984 Glencoe Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15220

Phone Number: 412 875 5444

Email Address: curj295@verizon.net

Medium: Collage, Mixed Media

Marguerite Dailey Matz

207 Alden Road
Carnegie, PA 15106

Phone Number: 412 276 0806

Email Address: mrgmatz@gmail.com

Medium: Colored Pencil

Robert Daley

2721 Queensboro Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15226

Phone Number: 412 531 3797

Email Address: shac79@hotmail.com

Medium: Oil, Pastel, Acrylic

Website: <http://robertdaley.com>

Charlotte Davidson

101 Washington Avenue
Hickory, PA 15340

Phone Number: 724 356 2558

Email Address: hush1@hky.com

Medium: Acrylic, Pastel

Dorothy de Groat

6357 Burchfield Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15217

Phone Number: 412 521 1198

Email Address: ddegroat4@gmail.com

Medium: Watercolor, Pastel, Mixed, Photo, Fiber

Mary Catherine de Nero

178 Rocky Ridge Road
Bethel Park, PA 15102

Alternate Address: 8355 Heritage Links Ct., Unit
1624, Naples, FL 34112 (Oct1-May1)

Phone Number: 412 831 3771

Medium: Watercolor

Lynn Deppen

140 Fairway Landings Drive
Cannonsburg, PA 15317

Phone Number: 412 951 1525

Email Address: ldeppen@aol.com

Medium: Acrylic

Website: <http://LynnDeppen.com>

Mary Lou Dickson

30 Brucewood Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15228

Phone Number: 412 341 0226

Email Address: mldickson7@verizon.net

Medium: Acrylic

Bud Dieterle

28 Clifton Blvd
Pittsburgh, PA 15210

Phone Number: 412 882 3660

Email Address: deebudster@aol.com

Medium: Acrylic

Website: <http://bud-dieterle.com>

Jennifer Dinovitz

1103 Glencoe Ave.
Pittsburgh, PA 15220

Phone Number: 412 922 3415

Email Address: jdinovitz@verizon.net

Medium: Collage

Carol Donnelly

122 National Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15236

Phone Number: 412 653 5058

Email Address: carolhud7323@verizon.net

Medium: Acrylic, Pastel, W/C, Mixed, Monotype

Website: <http://carol-donnelly.com>

Valeria Dukelow

240 Vee Lynn Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15228

Phone Number: 412 561 5783

Medium: Oil

Mary Dunn

427 Lisa Drive
West Mifflin, PA 15122

Phone Number: 412 460 0312

Email Address: mary@marydunn-artist.com

Medium: Pastel

Website: <http://marydunn-artist.com>

Edric N Florence

240 Graeser Avenue
Bethel Park, PA 15102

Phone Number: 412 833 5127

Email Address: eflorence@comcast.net

Medium: Woodturning

Website: <http://edricflorence.com>

Ray W Forquer

35 West Prospect Avenue
Washington, PA 15301t

Phone Number: 724 228 2461

Studio 724 228 1599

Email Address: forquer@comcast.net

Medium: Acrylic, Pastel

Ned Garnhart

1290 Boyce Road, Apt C-230
Pittsburgh, PA 15241

Phone Number: 724 941 7626 Cell 412 951 2389

Email Address: nedart@gmail.com

Medium: Acrylic, Colored Pencil

Carol K Gilfillan

1290 Boyce Rd, C333
Pittsburgh, PA 15241

Phone Number: 724-949-1339

Email Address: wfgilfillan@comcast.net

Medium: Fabric, Fiber, Watercolor

Alice E Goldbach

200 White Hampton Lane, Apt. 504
Pittsburgh, PA 15236

Phone Number: 412 884 2751

Medium: Watercolor, Acrylic

Carolyn J Haas

301 Eastern Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15215

Phone Number: 412 252 2704

Email Address: cjhaas@comcast.net

Medium: Colored Pencil, Photo, Acrylic, Oil, Jewelry

Susan Haddad

2315 Morrow Road
Pittsburgh, PA 15241

Phone Number: 412 835 2324

Email Address: susanhadd@aol.com

Medium: Watercolor

Maureen C Hamilton

1106 Linden Vue Drive
Canonsburg, PA 15317

Phone Number: 724 746 5377

Medium: Pastel

Lee Hanawalt

1339 Venetia Road
Eighty Four, PA 15330

Phone Number: 724 941 6107

Medium: Oil, Watercolor, Pastel, Acrylic, Mixed

John Hinderliter

3036 Aljean Drive
Bethel Park, PA 15102

Phone Number: 412-897-2065

Email Address: dj@johnhinderliter.com

Medium: Oil

Website: <http://johnhinderliter.blogspot.com>

Patricia J Hoffman

1100 Tennessee Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15216

Phone Number: 412 892 9244

Email Address: mcapjh@yahoo.com

Medium: Sterling Silver Jewelry, Scrimshaw, W/C

Robert Hossli

300 Madison Avenue Apt 607
Pittsburgh, PA 15243

Phone Number: 412-489-3848

Email Address: bhossli@providencepoint.org

Medium: Acrylic, Photography

Lisa Jenkins

112 Brooke Drive
Venetia, PA 15367

Phone Number: 412 980 8992

Email: lgj1001@aol.com

Medium: Colored pencil

Marge Kane

3441 Mohawk Road
Upper St Clair, PA 15241

Phone Number: 412 831 0371

Medium: Jewelry

Eric Karell

4708 Baldwin Manor Road
Pittsburgh, PA 15227

Phone Number: 412 885-7161

Email Address: e.karell@verizon.net

Medium: Pen & ink

Darla Carroll Kash

1010 Old Washington Road
McMurray, PA 15317

Phone Number: 724 941 7174

Email Address: dckash@hotmail.com

Medium: Watercolor

Nancy Kenney

810 Hershire Drive
Bethel Park, PA 15102

Phone Number: 412 854 5121

Email Address: dolberta1@verizon.net

Medium: Watercolor, Gouache & Ink

Kay Lagnese

323 Morton Street
Pittsburgh, PA 15234

Phone Number: 412 884 5167

Medium: Watercolor, Pastel

Judith Lauso

3524 Maplevue Drive
Bethel Park, PA 15102

Phone Number: 412 854 3154

Email Address: julst3@aol.com

Medium: Watercolor, Ink, Mixed

Chaz Letzkus

1693 Montpelier Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15216

Phone Number: 412 531 0535

Email Address: chazburgh@yahoo.com

Medium: Pen & Ink

Website: <http://chazmania.com>

Gary A Liberatore

846 W Pike Street
Houston, PA 15342

Phone Number: 724 745 0629

Medium: Oil, Acrylic, Pencil, Pastel

Laura Loggi

310 Marose Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15235

Phone Number: 412 241 2876

Email Address: centanno2001@yahoo.com

Medium: Photography

Frances Marze

626 Southview Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15226

Phone Number: 412 563 4384

Email Address: fmarze@verizon.net

Medium: Watercolor, Acrylic, Pastel, Mixed

Judy Mattei

26 Terrace Road
Carnegie, PA 15106

Phone Number: 412 279 8304

Email Address: judymattei@yahoo.com

Medium: Oil, Pastel

Estelle McFarland Byrne

189 Mayfair Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15228

Alternate Address: 65221 E. Diamond Ridge Ct.,
Tucson, AZ 85739 520-825-7820

Phone Number: 412 561 6154

Email Address: joebyrne@aol.com

Medium: Watercolor

Mary McGilloway

4653 Sherwood Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15236

Phone Number: 412 882 9132

Medium: Watercolor

Leda Miller

247 Reed Avenue
Houston, PA 15342

Phone Number: 724 745 7744

Email Address: brush2canvas@gmail.com

Medium: Oil, Watercolor

Carol Modery-Kilkeary

276 Froebe Road
Venetia, PA 15367

Phone Number: 724-941-4855

Email Address: tkilkeary@verizon.net

Medium: Graphite

Judith A Murray

1656 Queens Drive
South Park, PA 15129

Phone Number: 412 653 7923

Email Address: jmurray@comday.org

Medium: Acrylic, oil, watercolor, pastel

Stephany Myers

64 Kimberly Drive
Washington, PA 15301

Phone Number: 724 228 3774

Email Address: jdnstephmyers@comcast.net

Medium: Pastel

Michele Novak

133 Toura Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15236

Phone Number: 412-653-7006

Email Address: shellynovak@gmail.com

Medium: Oil

Website: <http://novakstudios.com>

Glenn Olcerst

1200 Resaca Place
Pittsburgh, PA 15212

Phone Number: 412 999 2539

Email Address: glennolcerst@comcast.net

Medium: Photography

Website: <http://glennolcerst.com>

Patsy Olsen Benincasa

314 Washington Road Apt 905
Pittsburgh, PA 15216

Phone Number: 412 343 0244

Medium: Oil, Pastel, Watercolor

Marilyn Palamara

4831 Glen Allen Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15236

Phone Number: 412 882 8185

Medium: Oil, Acrylic, W/C, Mixed Media, Pastel

Sandra Pennell

1263 Lamson Circle
Pittsburgh, PA 15241

Phone Number: 412 221 8458

Medium: Watercolor

Marian Phillips

34 Mainsgate St.
Pittsburgh, PA 15205

Phone Number: 412 937 0774

Email Address: marishka908@yahoo.com

Medium: Oil

Jan Pini

103 Crabtree Ct.
Venetia, PA 15367

Phone Number: 724-941-2394

Email Address: janpini@verizon.net

Medium: Watercolor

Dave Rasel

1918 Vermont Ave.
West Mifflin, PA 15122

Phone Number: 412 469 2341

Email Address: drasel@comcast.net

Medium: Oil

Website: <http://daverasel.com>

Betty Reid

371 Christy Road
Eighty Four, PA 15330

Phone Number: 724 222 1491

Email Address: fewunbcreid@comcast.net

Medium: Watercolor, Oil

Ruth G Richardson

23 Stratford Court
Carnegie, PA 15106

Phone Number: 412 279 0344

Email Address: ruthgelsa1@comcast.net

Medium: Watercolor

Sharon Rusiewicz

3251 Thornwood Drive
Bethel Park, PA 15102

Phone Number: 412 835 8713

Medium: Oil, Watercolor

Joe Rusnak

5062 Orchard Avenue
Bethel Park, PA 15102

Phone Number: 412 835 7278

Email Address: joerusnak@yahoo.com

Medium: Oil, watercolor

Jamie Schroeder

170 Gateshead Drive
McMurray, PA 15317

Phone Number: 724 260 0309

Email Address: schroeder97@msn.com

Medium: Beaded jewelry

John Skoko

879 Rolling Rock Road
Pittsburgh, PA 15234

Phone Number: 412 567-5666

Email Address: skokojohn@yahoo.com

Medium: Acrylic

Website: <http://www.angelfire.com/art2/jskoko/>

David Soden

2315 Firethorn Road
Bridgeville, PA 15017

Phone Number: 412 257 4590

Email Address: dtsoden@verizon.net

Medium: Watercolor, Pen & Wash

Kim Stocker

209 Cedar Brook Court
McMurray, PA 15317

Phone Number: 724 969 0607

Email Address: kimlkstocker@aol.com

Medium: Clay, Glass Mosaic

Dot Strott

4785 Giese Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15227

Phone Number: 412 882 3429

Medium: Acrylic, Mixed Media, Collage

Carol Swed

787 Flint Ridge Road
Pittsburgh, PA 15243

Phone Number: 412 531 6613

Email Address: patcarolswed@comcast.net

Medium: Oil

Anne Trimble

230 Edward Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15216

Phone Number: 412 343 0498

Email Address: anne@annetrimble.com

Medium: Pastel, Graphite, Oil

Website: <http://annetrimble.com>

Paul A Trimmer

1016 Forsythe Road
Carnegie, PA 15106

Phone Number: 412 276 3041

Email Address: patrimmer1016@gmail.com

Medium: Oil

Patrick Varriano

1220 Raven Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15243

Phone Number: 412 429 4094

Email Address: varriano@verizon.net

Medium: Watercolor

Website: <http://patrickvarriano.com>

Margaret Wells

638 Arden Lane
Mt. Lebanon, PA 15243

Phone Number: 412-344-6824

Email Address: mwells65@verizon.net

Medium: Graphite, pastel

Jean West

245 Trotwood West Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15241

Phone Number: 412 833 5388

Medium: Watercolor

Barbara Wettergreen

113 S Heide Lane
McMurray, PA 15317

Phone Number: 724 941 6355

Email Address: bwettergreen@gmail.com

Medium: Watercolor, AcrylicDiane White

Diane White

2157 Meadowmont Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15241

Phone Number: 412 257 1696

Email Address: d.white789@comcast.net

Medium: Oil

Website: <http://dianewhiteart.com>

Dan Winters

9903 Sundance Drive
Bridgeville, PA 15017

Phone Number: 412 221 3842

Email Address: dwinters1949@comcast.net

Medium: Watercolor

Janet Woodcock

4625 Fifth Avenue #205
Pittsburgh, PA 15213

Phone Number: 412 683 1056

Email Address: jl.woodcock@comcast.net

Medium: Acrylic

Website:

<http://picasaweb.google.com/janetwoodcock1>

Kathleen J Zovko

2588 Giant Oaks Drive
Pittsburgh, PA 15241

Phone Number: 412 833 9462

Medium: Watercolor, Acryli



South Hills Art League By-Laws Revised April, 2007

ARTICLE I Name and Mission

The name of this organization shall be the South Hills Art League (SHAL). Its mission is as follows:

The mission of the South Hills Art League is to provide membership artists opportunities to exhibit their work while broadening their artistic foundation

ARTICLE II Membership and Dues

A. Dues

Dues for the fiscal year shall be determined by the Board at the end of each fiscal year. Member's dues are to be paid to the treasurer by April 1. A member is delinquent if his/her dues are not paid on or before June 30. After notification delinquency to a member and after reasonable time as decided by the Board for the delinquent member to pay his/her dues, a member failing to pay dues shall be expelled from membership at the end of December. New members must pay dues upon acceptance to SHAL. New members accepted at the spring screening shall pay one-half year's dues.

B. Active Membership

Any person over 18 years of age and residing in the tri-state area may apply for membership according to the rules of the screening committee and the by-laws.

C. Honorary Membership

Honorary membership may be given by the Board. No dues shall be required. However, no honorary member may participate in SHAL's exhibits unless the Board approves, and no honorary member may vote or serve as an officer or on the Board of Directors.

D. Reinstatement of Former Members

Members who have resigned or have been expelled for non-payment of dues may be reinstated only by applying and having his/her work screened in the same manner as a new applicant for membership. In the case of a person expelled for non-payment of dues, he/she must also reimburse SHAL for the dues owed at the time of expulsion to be eligible for reinstatement.

ARTICLE III Governing Bodies

The governing bodies of SHAL shall be its Officers and Board of Directors.

A. The officers are a president, vice-president, secretary, and treasurer.

B. The Board of Directors (referred to as the Board) is composed of the officers and chairpersons of the committees described in Article VI. A SHAL member who has been a member for six months is eligible to serve on the Board as a committee chairperson. A member may fill an officers' position after one year of membership:

1. The Board, including the officers, shall be elected at [he last meeting of the fiscal year. The president of the past fiscal year shall prepare a list of officers and board candidates and may seek assistance from other members for the selection process. The candidates' names shall be submitted for approval to the membership at the last meeting of the fiscal year,

however, additional candidates may be nominated from the floor for election at the meeting.

2. Vacancies on the Board, except for president and vice-president shall be filled by a vote of a majority of a quorum of the Board members.
3. Except for officers, a Board member may be replaced by a majority vote of the Board without the consent of the membership.

ARTICLE IV Duties of the Officers and Term Limits

A. President

1. The president is the chief executive officer and shall preside at all meetings of SHAL and its Board.
2. The president, with the approval of the Board, may appoint special or ad hoc committee chairpersons and shall be considered a member of such committees as may be selected.

B. Vice President

In the absence of the president, the vice-president shall assume the president's duties and will chair the exhibition's committee.

C. Secretary

The secretary shall record the minutes of all meetings including Board meetings and read the minutes at the meetings where requested to do so by the presiding officer. The secretary shall also be custodian of all records.

D. Treasurer

The treasurer shall be the custodian of financial records and maintain the membership list of SHAL. He/she shall collect and receive dues, exhibit sales money, money of SHAL, and deposit all money in a bank designated by the Board. The treasurer will give a financial report of receipts and expenditures at each regular meeting. At the close of the fiscal year, the president may request an audit of the treasurer's books by a committee of three people appointed by the president. and/or at the president's discretion, by an auditor appointed by the president. At the expiration of the treasurer's term or terms in office, all money, books and properties of SHAL shall be given to his/her successor.

- E. The term for the president, vice-president and secretary (or secretaries) shall be one year. Any of these officers may serve up to three additional terms if approved by the Board and elected to do so by the membership. The treasurer's term in office shall be two years and may serve an additional two terms if approved by the Board and elected to do so by the membership.

ARTICLE V Fiscal Year

SHAL's fiscal year is January 1 through December 31.

ARTICLE VI Committees

- A. Chairpersons of the committees shall constitute the Board of Directors. At the discretion of the Board, committees may be consolidated.

- B. The following committees are authorized to act on behalf of SHAL:

1. Program

This committee shall plan the meetings' programs, select speakers and introduce the speakers at the meetings. The speakers must be approved by the president and/or the Board.

2. Publicity

This committee is in charge of all publicity and news releases except for the newsletter. The chairperson of publicity shall submit his/her ideas to the Board for approval.

3. Exhibitions

The chairperson of this committee is the 'lice president. This committee shall be in charge of the annual juried exhibit and all other exhibits. Exhibits throughout these by-laws are also referred to as shows. All exhibit plans, cost estimates, and exhibit sites must first be approved by the Board.

4. Membership and Screening

- a. This committee shall arrange for space for the fall and spring screening of new applicants for membership. The membership and screening chairperson need not be a screening judge.
- b. The screening judges shall consist of three members who will serve three-year terms on a rotation basis. The president shall select screening judges. As soon as one screening judge completes his/her three-year term, another screening judge shall be appointed to a three-year term. The purpose of this rule is that two experienced screening judges will be carried over from year to year. In addition to the three member screening judges, an alternate shall be appointed by the president to act when any screener is unavailable. The alternate screener will also fill the next available position as a screening judge. The screening judges shall screen the work of new applicants for membership and works submitted for SHAL's annual exhibit, if the show's juror does not desire to do so or if the Board chooses the screeners to do so. The screening judges and juror have the right to reject any unsuitable work from any SHAL exhibit or new member screening.
- c. The identities of the screening judges will not be revealed to anyone except to the Board.

5. Newsletter

This committee is responsible for preparing and mailing a newsletter to the members at least four times during the fiscal year. Among other things, the newsletter will contain notices of upcoming meetings, proposed by-laws amendments and any matters of interest to the membership. If meeting dates and important matters are not available when the newsletter is published, the newsletter committee will advise the membership by post card.

6. Hospitality

This committee is responsible to provide refreshments at meetings and receptions held at the annual juried show and other exhibits sponsored by SHAL. This committee shall submit estimates and proposed hospitality plans to the Board.

7. Properties

The president will chair this committee and be in charge of all property owned by SHAL. The properties committee will assist the president whenever properties are needed. In the event any property is sold, rented or loaned; it must be with the approval of the Board who will determine sales price, rental fees, and/or deposit fees for the property as well as the terms of the sale, lease or loan.

8. Correspondence

This committee is responsible for all league correspondence. including but not limited to writing and following up on requests for prizes for the annual juried exhibit, sending announcements of league events to members by letter or postcard, sending thank you notes to those donating prizes and speakers at league meetings, sending get well or sympathy cards to members and their families and assisting the president with any other necessary correspondence. The correspondence chairperson may also assist the newsletter chairperson when needed.

ARTICLE VII Meetings

A. General Membership Meetings

There shall be at least two or more meetings each fiscal year. The Board or president may schedule additional meetings when deemed necessary. The dates of all meetings are to be announced to the membership by newsletter or post card and all meeting dates, except meetings specially convened, are to be announced, if dates are available, at the first meeting of the fiscal year.

B. Board Meetings

The Board shall meet not less than four times each year at times scheduled by the president.

C. Quorums

1. A quorum at general membership meetings shall be 10 or more members in attendance when a vote is taken. Decisions shall be made by a majority vote of the ten or more members in attendance.
2. A quorum of the Board shall be four.

ARTICLE VIII Sales and Exhibits

- A. All sales payments at shows sponsored by SHAL shall be paid to the treasurer who will withhold 20% commission on each sale. The Board has the power to determine whether an entry fee for a show or exhibition is warranted, and has the authority to set the fee.
- B. The president and/or treasurer shall obtain insurance required by owners of the premises where exhibits are scheduled. The treasurer is responsible for paying the premium from SHAL funds.

ARTICLE IX By-laws Amendments and Operating Guidelines

A. Amendments

1. These by-laws may be amended by a majority vote of the membership constituting a quorum under Article VII C of these by-laws.
2. Written notice of the proposed amendments must be given to all members at least four days before the general meeting. Usually, this notice will appear in the newsletter.

B. Operating Guidelines

These are committee guidelines and standards enacted by the Board; and if they conflict with the by-laws, the by-laws take precedence. The Board alone may amend these guidelines.

ARTICLE X Parliamentary Authority

The rules in Roberts Rules of Order, Revised, shall govern SHAL meeting procedures in which the rules are applicable unless the rules are inconsistent with the by-laws of SHAL

ARTICLE XI Revocation of Prior By-Laws and Standing Rules

By enactment of these 2002 revised by-laws, all previous by-laws and standing rules are hereby revoked.

South Hills Art League Standards for Exhibits

Revised October 2010

- Must be a member of the South Hills Art League with current dues paid.
- Screening shall be done by SHAL's anonymous screening committee, whose decisions are final.
- All work, two-dimensional and three-dimensional, must be clean, neat, safe, and ready to exhibit.
- Special display requirements must be discussed with the show chairperson prior to the screening.
- Incomplete or unframed work brought to the screening will not be considered. Work on unframed stretched canvas will be considered **only** if the canvas is stapled to the back of the stretcher and the sides of the canvas are painted. Hanging pieces, including any 3-D hanging pieces, must be securely wired. **No sawtooth hangers or backloading metal poster frames will be accepted.** The hanging committee is unable to rewire or repair work during the hanging.
- Work entered in SHAL's annual juried exhibition cannot have been previously shown in any other SHAL juried exhibition. Work shown previously in non-SHAL juried exhibitions is acceptable. No restrictions will apply to any of SHAL's non-juried shows.
- All work must be original and executed by the artist. No artwork rendered in a class setting or artwork rendered from commercial patterns, kits, commercial photos, or molds is allowed. No copies or reproductions are permitted at juried exhibits. Reproductions at non-juried exhibits must be specifically marked as to method.
- Work accepted at the screening must be available for the exhibit. If the artist does not produce the accepted artwork by the hanging deadline, any prizes awarded will be forfeited, and the entry fee will not be refunded.
- Artists who have no work accepted will be refunded the entry fee.
- SHAL carries only liability insurance on its exhibits and is not responsible for any theft or damage of artists' work. Artists are required to sign a release before each exhibit.
- **All work must comply with the specific requirements listed in the prospectus for each exhibit. Artists are responsible for complying with these requirements and should address any questions to the show chairperson prior to the screening. Work presented at the screening must be ready to exhibit. No opportunity will be given to correct defects. The decision of the screening committee is final.**